UNITED NATIONS

General @) Assembly e

Wednesday, 24 October 1990
FORTY-FIFTH SESSION at 10 a.m.
Official Records New York
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 15th MEETING
Chairmant Mr. MAYCOCK

(Barbados)

L B_AQ g mi -1 D AAMiN1S
Budgetary Questiong: Mr. MSELLE
CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 126: PERSONNEL QUESTIONS

(a) COMPOSITION OF THE SECRETARIAT

(b) RESPECT FOR THE PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES OF OFFICIALS OF THE UNITED
NATIONS AND 2"HE SPECIALIZED AGENCIES AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

(c) OTHER PERSONNEL QUESTIONS

AGENDA ITEM 125: SCALE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE APPORTIONMENT OF THE EXPENSES OF THE
UNITED NATIONS (gcontinued)

AGENDA ITEM 118: PROGRAMME BUDGET FOR THE BIENNIUM 1990-1991 (gontinued)

This record 18 subject to correction
Corrections should be sent under the signature of & member of the delegation cowerned

within une week of the date of publicanion to the Chiel of the Official Records Editing Section, Roum DC2 780, Distr. GENERAL
2 United Nations Plaza, and incorpurated in a copy of the recond A/C.5/45/8R.15
Carrections will be iaued after the end of the sessian, 114 separate corngendum for each Caomunitiee 12 November 1990
ENGLISH

ORIGINAL: FRENCH
90-56543 29678 (E)

/L.{f) /oo




A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m.

1. The CHAIRMAN asked delegations if they had no objection to inviting a
representative of the Staff Unioan to introduce, at a subsequent meeting, a document
which the Staff Union intended to submit to the General Assembly in accordance with
rvesolution 35/213.

2. It was so decided.

AGENDA ITEM 126: PERSONNEL QUESTIONS (A/45/541 and A/45/548; A/C.5/45/3,
A/C.5/45/10 and Corr.l, A/C.5/45/11, A/C.5/45/12, A/C.5/45/18 and A/C.5/45/19)

(a) COMPOSITION OF THE SECRETARIAT

(b) RESPECT FOR THE PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES OF OFFICIALS OF THE UNITED NATIONS
AND THE SPECIALIZED AGENCIES AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

(c) OTHER PZRSONNEL QUESTIONS

3. Mr, CISR (Assistant Secretary-General for Human Resources Management), after
paying tribute to his predecessor, reviewed some of the personnel questions dealt
with in the various reports submitted under agenda item 126, Leaving it to the
Legal Counxel to introduce the report on the privileges and immunities of officials
(A/C.5/45710) at greater length he touched only briefly on the question of the
security and protection of staff members. Pointing out that the security situation
of staff members had cnntinued to deteriorate in a anumber of countries, he stressed
the obligations incumbent on Member States in that regard and expressed his
determination to exert every effort to ensure respect for the immunities and
privileges of international civil srrvants as an essential condition for the
success of the activities of the United Natioas.

4. Turning to tho report on the composition of the Secretariat (A/45/541), he
said th- t between July 1989 and June 1990 the number of underreprescntea Member
States nad bcen reduced from 20 to 19, despite recruitment restrictions, and the
number of unrepresented States had decreased from 1l to 10 with the recruitment of
8 national of Dominica. He counted on the co-operation of the Governments
concerned, which could help to improve the figures still further by submitting
applications for available posts from qualified candidates and, whenever necessary,
by facilitating access by tlie Office of Human Resources Management (OHRM) to
professional associations and netional media. On the method of grouping Member
States presented in section D of the report, he specified that the options
presented were only examples and that it was for the Fifth Committee to decide on
the composition of the groupings.

5. Some progress had been made with regard to the .mprovement of the staitus of
wom~n in the Secretariat (A/45/548), but every effort must continue to be made to
bring about a quantitative and qualitative increase in the representation of
womea. The successful participation of women in the United Nations mission in

/\..



A/C.5/45/8R,18
English
Page 3

(M, Cdaa)

Namibia must not be forgotten. A number of measures had been taken Auring the year
to improve the status nf women, including emergency measures to attain the

30 per cent target set for the rapreseantation of women in posts subject to
geographical distribution. He intended to monitor those measures to decide whether
to maintain or expand them, and looked forward to the annual report of the Steering
Committee for the Improvement of the Status of Women in the Recretariat. He
thanked the many Permanent Miss’ons which had collaborated with the Secretariat in
that area.

6. Since the eund of June 1990 further progress had been made, with the
sppuintment of another 13 women t¢ posts subject to geographical distribution and
an increas. in the number of women at the D-2 level from 8 to 10. The number of
women at the D-1 and P-5 levels had decreased, however, OHRM intended to continue
its efforts in that direction aud counted very much on the co-operation of the
Member £tatas concerned in that regard.

7. On the subject of the administration of justice in the Secretariat
(A/7C.5/45/11), OHRM co-operated closely with the Office of the
Under-Secretary-General for Administration and Management in ensuring that the
appellate system continued to functio. efficlently and that, wherever possible,
staff grievances were settled informally in order to avoid costly litigation.

8. The report on secondment from govermment service (A/C.5/45/12) set ocut recent
devalopments relating to the practice of secondnent following a judgement by the
United Natioas Administrative Tribunal. The report sought to ideutify the main
hyrotheses that might serve as a basis for the Secvetary-General's policy in that
area and requested the Gemeral Assembly's approval of the proposed approach. It
stated that, under certain circumstances, secondment might undermine the
independence and efficiency of the Secretariat, and specified that new procedures
would be established to avoid any ambiguity in the future. The Secretary-Geueral
would give all staff coming within the ambit of resolution 37/126 consideration for
a career appointment, bearing in mind the necessity of securing for the
Organization the highest standards of efficiency, competence and integrity. Many
staff members previously considered to have been on secondment would in future be
treated as be.ng on fixed-term contractr.

9. He then briefly reviewed the activities of OHRM pursuant to General Assembly
resolutions A/14/185 and A/43/224, pointing nut thac those activitles had been
carried out in the difficult context of retrenchment and the rtafifing of important
peace-keeping missions. Reporting on progress made in the ares of career
developmert, he referred, in particular, to a Career Development Handbook for staff
in the feneral Service category. which had been compiled by the OHRM aud should be
published shortly.

10. Systematic training in office automation nad been conducted, with a massive
programme for retraining Headquarters staff with a view to the standard use of
Hord Perfect software, the provision of equipment and software to all duty stations
away from KRoadquarters to establish self-study centres, and the development of a

,...



A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 4 '

(M, _Cioas)

comprehensive training programme in the Economic Commission for Africa (ECA). In
addition, a standard programme for training in supervisory skills had been
developed and should benefit all staff members concerned. The retraining of staff
had received the requisite attention within the limits of available resources, and
the External Studies programme had been expanded. Furthermore, seven Professional
staff members from six offices away from Headquarters were attending university
courses as part of the Sabbatical Studies programme.

11, Additional measures had been taken to strengtnen the linguistic capabilities
of staff, especially those in posts subject to geographical Aistribution, with the
organization of workshope and courses to address specific language needs, the
preparation of self-study courses in English, French and Spanish, the publication
of drafting handbooks in English and Freanch, and the development of self-study
materials in Arabic in anticipation of a mission to Western Sahara.

l

12, However, if the United Nations was to be in a position to rise creatively and
competently to the challenges of the 1990s and beyond, the occupational training
programme must be overhauled so that it fulfilled its essential function. The
Genaral Assembly must not confine itself to recognizing the importance of training,
but must give it the key role it deserved in programme planning and budgeting.
OHRM therefore hoped that the medium-term plan strategies proposed for the 1990s
would recelve the support of Member States.

13. There was a growing malaise among staff members, who now had fewer
opportunities for advancement because of the retrenchment exercise and because of
the rigidity of the job classification system that led to the blocking of staff
members at the same lavel whatever their experience or the quality of their work.
One way to improve the morale and motivation of the staff while at the same time
maintaining ths integrity of the job classification system would be, in the case of
the entry and middle levels (P-2 to P-4 and G-1 to G-5), to base the promotion of
staff members on merit and seniority, whether posts existed or not. For staff at
the higher levels, the availability of posts classified at the higher level would
still remain a prerequisite for promotion. Those ideas required further
reflection. Meanwhile, OHRM was planning to authorize personal promotions in
certain csses where serious blockages existed even if no higher level post was
immediately available.

14. 1In order to solve those problems, he had already launched a review process of
the current systems for the assignment and promotion of staff., As soon as specific
proposals for reform had been developed he would, together with staff and
management representatives, undertake consultations which he considered essential
for the success of the reforms. The short-term goal was to institute a transparent
and objective system for the management of persoanel movements and promotions which
would encourage mobility while ensuring opportunities for advancement for qualified
and competent staff members. In t!> longer term, he hoped to establish a wider
system of car~er development for all categories of staff; that would require
considerable work and time. Efforts had already been made to improve the format of
the performance evaluation reports.

/l.'



A/C.5/745/8R.15
English
Page 5

(Mr.Cisa)

15. National recruitment examinations were to be organigsed at the P-3 level

in 1991 for two occupational groups, on the understanding that the P-3 posts needed
for the promotion of staff members at the P-2 level having the required
qualificutions would be excluded from those examinations. He noted that the
further extension of the competitive examinations to all occupational groups within
the Secretariat, if the results were satisfactory, would require some additional
resources. It was also intended to improve the G to P promotion system and to
expand its scope.

16. In conclusion, he stressed that, now more than ever, it was important for the
Secretariat to employ highly qualified men and women and to be given the means to
update and develop the qualifications of the staff. His aim was to give a high
level of priority to competence and talent in the recruitment, assignment, training
and promotion of staff. He would at a later date submit to the Fifth Committee a
report on what had been done in that area and on his long-term plans.

17. Mg, FLEISCHHAUER (Under-Secretary-General, the Legal Counsel), introducing the
report of the Secretary-General on respect for the privileges and immunities of
officials of the United Nations and the specialized agencies and related
organizations (A/C.5/45/10 and Corr.l), said that, as in previous years, the report
was presente 1 on behalf of the Administrative Committee on Co-ordination (ACC). It
covernad the period from 1 July 1989 to 30 June 1990 and was based on the
information provided by the members of ACC.

18. In recent years, the United Nations, as never before, had served as a centre
of international diplomacy. Peace-keeping, peace-building and various other
activities h~d expanded substantially. The United Nations had become more
operationals in Namibia alone, 8,000 persons had been deployed. Consequently, it
was important to provide favourable conditions for staff members to enable them to
discharge their duties; indeed, sometimes that was a crucial requirement. At its
previous session, the General Assembly had once again emphasized the importance of
scrupulous respect for the privileges and immunities of officials and had called
upon all Memker States impeding officials in the proper discharge of their duties
to review the cases broucht to their attention and to resolv' them with all due
speed.

19. The report placed in the forefront the cases of arrest, detention, abduction -
and even loss of 1ife - which continued to be a matter of the gravest concern to
the Secretary-General and the executive heads of the organizations concerned.
Unfortunately, despite the efforts undertaken, the number of cases of arrest and
detention remained very high during the reporting period. As in previous years,
most of the cases related to official of the United Nations Relief and Works Agenc¥
for Palestine Refugees in the Near East (UNRWA), but some other agenclies were also
concerned. The alarming fact was that it was not only the staff members who were
involved; members of their families, in particular children, had also been subject
to arrest or detention. Efforts had been made to intervene with the authorities,
but often without success. Paragraphs 8 to 14 and annex II contained detailed
information regarding cases of arrest, detencion, abduction and loss of life.

Annex I provided a consolidated list in chronological order.

/l.l




A/C.8/45/8R.15
English
Page 6

(Mr._Fleiachhauer)

30. Although all the cases cited in the report deserved equal atteantion, there
wvere some which were particulanrly disquieting: for example the case of

Mrs. Guenet Mabrahtu, a WHO staff member who had been arrested by the Ethiopian
securlty forces on 8 June 1989 &nd was still being held in custody. No formal
explanations had been given. Threes FAO staff members of Afghan nationality -

Mr. Danlat Mir, Mr. Saleem Hairan and Mr, Mohamed Omar - had been arrested and
forcefully conscripted into military service. Mention should also be made of the
serious developments which had taken place recently in Rwanda, although they had
not occurred within the reporting period. On 5 and 7 October 1990, the Rwandese
military forces had arrested five staff members employed by UNICEF, UNDP and ILO.
After several unsuccessful attempts on the part of the resident designated
official, the Secretary-General had sent a note verbale to the Permanent
Representative of Rwanda on 18 October 1990,

2l. A number of staff members had, however, been released, for example,

Mres. T. Jawabri, an FAO staff member who had been arrested in 1982, and

Mr. Sami Issa, a staff member of the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
(UNDOF), who had been detained since 1985.

32, On the issue of travel restrictions in the United States, there had been a
number of positive developments. The United States Goverament had lifted its
restrictions on staff members of Caechoslovak, Hungarian and Polish nationality.

It was to be hoped that other similar restrictions would also be removed. In that
connection, tho Secretary-General noted with regret that the United States hzd
recontly introduced restrictions for nationals of Irag. 1In his note verbale
addressed to the Permaneant Representative of the United States, he had repeated his
position of principle regarding the discriminatory treatment of staff members of
the SBecretariat solely on the basis of their nationality.

43. In paragraph 16 of the rejort, it was stated that World Food Programme (WFP)
staff members were sometimes denied access to certain operational areas for
security reasons. That issue might require careful consideration at the current
session.

24. Certain Member States cortinued to impose taxes on the salaries of their
nationals. As had been emphasized on many occasions, that practice was a violation
of the privileges and immunities granted to United Nations staff,

35, In his previous report, the Secretary-General had raised the question of the
applicability of article VI, section 22, of the Convention on the Privileges and
Immunities of the United Nations to the case of Mr. Dimitri Mazilu, former
Rapporteur of the Sub-Commission on Prevention of Discrimination and Protection of
Minorities. The International Court of Justice had concluded, jinter alia, that
persons (other than United Nations ~fficials) to whom a mission had been entrusted
by the Organisation, i.e., experts on mission, were entitled to enjoy the
privileges and immunities provided for in that article with a view tn the
independent exercise of their functions. 1In his capacity as Special Rapporteur,
Mr. Masilu had to be regarded as an expert on mission. Notwithstanding, the
advisory opinion had very wide implicatiounms.

/...



A/C.5/45/8R,158
Eaglish
Page 7

(Mr._Eleiachhayer)

26. \With reference to measures and proposals in furtherance of the safety of
ofticicls, the measures taken by WFP to cover risks to its personnel in high-risk
areas could serve as an example of a possidle soiution,

27. Mr. NIKIFORQV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that the world was
witnessing the emergence of a new order which would no longer be based on
confrontation; the international community should therefore devote itself to the
following activities: adjusting United Nations activities and structures to the
new realities; improving co-ordination in the work of internmational organisations;
and ensuring better utilization of thair resources. The Soviet Union accordingly
shared the view thut the ultimate objective of United Nations human resources
management policy should be to achieve the highest standards of efficiency,
competence and integrity in the international civil service and to make it a model
of efficient executive machinery.

28, 1In that context, his delegation was pleased to note that the objectives of the
administrative and budgetary reform had generally been fulfilled. It highly
appreciated the contribution made by the senior officials of the fecretariat and
above all by the Secretury-Gemeral. Improving the functioning of the United
Nations executive machinery hed become one of the components of new political
thinking, and the Soviet Union had made its own contribution to that process by
discarding obsolete approaches to personnel matters. Recognising the need to
ensure continuity and maintain ¢ permanent core of highly qualified personnel, it
had amended its recruitment criteria; henceforth, Soviet specialists would serve in
the Secretariat so long as the Organization required. Some of them had received
career appointments and the number was increasing. The Soviet Union intended to
comply fully with the international norms and standards for practices associated
with the service of Soviet citizens in international organisations.

29, On the issue of secondment, his delegation welcomed the calin and well-balanced
tone of the fecretary-Gereral's report (A/C.5/45/12). It shared the concern
expressed regarding the guarantees to be provided to staff members returning to the
service of their cwn Goverament. The proposed arrangement for secondment contracts
would certainly add to their employment security. There was legislation in the
Soviet Union to protect the rights of civil servants. Generally speaking, the
basic hypotheses suggested in the report for establishing guidelines designed to
maximize efficiency while bearing in mind the legitimate interests of Member States
seemed acceptable. They should make it possible to defuse the issue and would
eventually contribute to better administration of the Organization,

30. Like the approach of the Secretary-General, the position of the Soviet Union
on personnel matters was based on the recognition that administrative reform was
essentially a continuous process for developing self-regulating machinery highly :
responsive to the changing requirements of the international community. The
long-tesm recommendations of the Group of 18 were still relevant and would coantinue
to serve as guidelines for future work. The role of the Secretary-General in
personnel matters, as the Organization's Chief Administrative Officer, should be
strengthened, in strict conformity with the Charter and the interests of the

,...



A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 8

(Mr. Nikiforov, USSR)

international community. Personnel management must he basnd on clear, coherent ard
transpavent rules and the work of the Office of Human Resources Management in that
respcct should be reactivuted.

31. The Soviet Union was in favour of holding more national competitive
examinations for recruiting junior officiala. Furthermore, it was impossible to
achieve the highest standards of efficlency, competence and professional integrity
without an effective system of evaluation. Much remaineé to be done in that field.

32. Unfortunately, the recommendation on the role and functions of the Staff Union
and non-interference in the administrative functions «f the Secretary-General had
not been satisfactorily implemented. Furthermore, the practice of financing union
activities from the Organization's budget was difficult to justify.

33. His delegation was in favour of stricter application of the rule limiting
heads of departments and divisions to a ten-year maximum term of office, on the
ground that periodic rotation of high-level officials had a beneficial effect on
the work of the Secretariat.

34. As a major contributor, the Soviet Union could not remain indifferent to the
need to improve staff efficiency. 1In its view, the high predominance of career
appointments was the principal obstacle. A reasonable balance of permanent and
fixed-term appointments would have a number of clear advantages: it would at long
last be possible to achieve an equitable geographical distribution for all Member
States at all levels; the Secretariat would have the necessary flexibility in
personnel management and redeployment; interchanges between national and
international civil services would be developed; lastly, it would be easier to
dismiss unsatisfactory staff members. The Soviet Union fully realized that the
problem could not be solved overnight, but it was disappointing that little or
nothing was being done to address it. At WHO, 80 per cent of the staff were on
fixed-term appointments. At UNESCO, the proportion was 75 per cent. Without
necessarily copying the policies of those organizations, the United Natioams could
establish a reasonable balance of different types of appointment.

AGENDA ITEM 1253 SCALE OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE APPORTIONMENT OF THE EXPENSES OF THE
UNITED NATIONS (continued) (A/45/11)

35. Mr. OSELLA (Argentina) said that the proposals put forward by the Committee on
Contributions responded to a certain extent to the wishes expressed by the Fifth
Committee but could be improved still further on certain points. The fundamental
criterion used in establishing the scale, namely capacity to pay., seemed to meet
with unanimous approval. At the same time the scale should reflect the general
trends in the world economy as expressed in the individual situations of

countries. That was why additional factors, such as those specified in resolutions
43/223 and 447197, had been introduced. However, the fact that proposals were
logical and coherent did not mean that they would necessarily achieve the desired
results. In recent years, a paradoxical situation had emerged: the share of the
expenditure assumed by the developing countries had increased, as a direct

/oo'



A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 9

(Mr. Osella, Argentina)

consequeace of the dete-loration of their economic ard financial situation. Over
the same period, some industrialiszed countries had seen their assessments reduced
despite considerable improvement in the economic situation. It was not his
delegation's iutention to engage in polemics, but that trend risked conpromising
spplication of the basic principle, namely apportiomment of the Organization's
expenses in accordance with the capacity to pay. Account should be taken in the
next scales of the effects of inflation and exchange rates, which would make it
possible to correct the dAistortions linked to the relationship between national
exchange rates used to convert United States dollars and the level of domestic
prices. The idea was not new and had already beea used by the Committee on
Contributions to determine the income of countries with high rates of inflation.
His delegation thought that that method should be used until the Fifth Committee
made its upplication general. It was therefore in favour of continuing the work
started on studying various exchange rates in relation to prices.

36. Raising the upper per capita income limit to $2,600 would be a step in the
right direction but not enough for the developing countries. His delegation, like
others, was in favour of a reasonable level that would take into account the
depreciation of United States currency. It was in favour of maintaining the
gradieat at its current level of 85 per cent.

37. The income-adjustment mechanism used for interest payments was a major
component. Argentina endorsed the principle behind the proposal submitted by the
Committee on Contributions, but felt that it was distorting the original underlying
idea. That idea had been simple:t to grant some relief to the heavily indebted
countries, but subsequeatly, as a result of various factors included to refine the
method, the fundamental object had ultimately been lost from view. It would be
recalled, for erample, that in the scale approved in 1985, the ad hoc formula had
been of advantage to no more than 37 countries. From a document distributed on

23 October it could be seen that Australia had enjoyed a reduction of 20 points, as
against the reduction for Argentina of only 1 point. It was well known that those
two countries had different burdens to bear. The proposals of the Committee on
Cuntributions wore of advantage to only 20 developing countries, while 13 developed
countries benefited from the adjustment proposed for indebtedness. As a result, to
the extent that the notion of indebtedness - defined as the burden which the
heavily indebted countries had to bear - was not duly allowed for, Argentina would
wish the Committee to re-examine the initial idea underlying the "debt adjustment",

38. The statistical base period of 10 years gave the methodology a certain
stapility, but to enable ic to reflect the real capacity to pay, a greater weight
should be given to the most recent years.

39. Argentina supported the suggestion of the Committee on Contributions “hat the
scheme of variation limits, as used at present, should be kept. With regard to
special adjustments, Argentina supported the recommendations for a greater degree
of transparency.

40. Firally, Argentina shared the concern expressed by the representative of Yemen
and was ready to support the Yemeni proposal,

/'..



A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 10

41. Mc, MONAYAIR (Kuwait) said that he would have preferred the statistical base
period to be reduced from 10 to 5 years, to make better allowance for fluctuations
in the economic situation of the various countries. It would also have been
desirable, for calculating assessments, to take into account the particular
situation of those countries which depended on a single product. To give a greater
degree of fairness, it would have been necessary also to allow for various other
fzctors. In invading Kuwait, Iraq had pillaged the country and totally
dispossessed it, going so far as to destroy all its archives and suppressing the
Kuwaiti dinar.

42. Mr, WILKINSON (Unitad States of America) said that the United States had never
agreed that capacity to pay should be the fundamental criterion for determining the
scale of assessments, since such a criteria had the effect of denying the
sovereignty and equality of Member States, of putting a disproportionate reliance
on too small & number of contributors, and of discouraging responsible positions on
budgetary issues. The best way for Member States to keep their assessments at
levels that their Governments could afford was by controlling United Nations
budgets and energetically pursuing means to keep down spending. Moreover, defining
the real capacity to pay of Member States was an impossible taak. With no
agreement on the exact meaning of capacity to pay, it was perfectly understandable
that delegations would want to weigh in with their own particular concerns and
interests.

43. Attempts by Member States to fine-tune the present scale had the effect, of
course, of robbing Peter to pay Paul. While not proposing a new basis for
determining the scale, nor seeking to lower its own assessment rate, the United
States urged the various delegations at least to give some thought to the
desirability of finding a new basis for determining the scale, one that would spare
the Fifth Committee the unfortunate arguments surrounding the technical
complexities of the scale and, more importantly, would enable the formulation of a
scale of assessments that would be simple, clear and understandable to all. The
United States wished to stress, however, that it felt that the Committee on
Contributions had done a heroic job under particularly trying circumstances. The
Fifth Committee should refrain from providing the Committee on Contributions with
further detailed instructions on the current ncale.

44. The United States was emphatically opposed to any effort to change the
composition of the Committee on Contributions. Since a handful of countries
contributed some 80 per cent of the United Nacions' resources, it was at the very
least surprising to hear that those countries were over-represented on the
Committee on Contributions. Furthermore, enlarging that Committee would merely
waaken the effectiveness of that expert body.

45. Substantial progress had been zchieved in reducing the administrative costs of
the Organisation, with no negative impact on programmes, and further savings were
possible. It was thus to be hoped that the Fifth Committee would focus its
efforts on those measures that would control the rate of growth in assessments for
all members,

/...



A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 11

46. Mr, ALI (Chairman of the Committee on Contributions), in response to the
questions raised by delegations during the general debate, observed that wide
agreement existed with regard to the underlying principle of methodology, the
capacity to pay. Despite the reservations voiced by Brazil, Cuba, Poland and
others, most Member States saw the advantages of stability and predictability
offared by a statistical base period of 10 years. 7The scheme of limits was another
component of the methodology which was ac “sptable to most delegations in its

present form, despite its distorting effect on the capacity to pay as determined by
the other components.

47. Most delegations had supported the Committee's recommendation regarding the
increase to $2,600 of the upper per capita income limit, to give some relief to the
low per-capita-income countries. However, there were several delegations, Mexico,
Poland, Tunisia and Venezuela among them, which felt that, while the proposed
increase was a step in the right direction, it 4id not go far enough. Mexico had
proposed a limit of $3,220 based on the Consumer Price Index of the United States,
and a real growth rate of 2.9 per cent per year or 18.7 per cent between 1986 and
1992, The Committee on Contributions could certainly review the level of the upper
per capita income level again in future years. It should not L. forgotten,
however, that the delegations of Australia, Japan and Pakistan had observed that
such an increase beyond $2,600 might benefit Member States not ordinarily included
in the group of developing countries. In that connection, conference room

papers 1 A and 1 B, which showed the step-by-step application of the scale
methodology including the impact of the ceiling, the floor, and the scheme of
limits on the machine scale resulting after the application of the low per capita
allowance formula, gave an answer to the question from Poland regarding the
one-point increase.

48, India had raised a point regarding the duplication of the effect of the low
per capita income allowance formula, if countries with very low per capita incomes
were automatically excluded from the allocation of any additional points as a
result of the application of the scheme of limits. It was true that no particular
consideration was given in the formula to countries with very low per capita
incomes, but the formula did provide for progressively larger deductions from
national income with declining per capita incomes. For instance, given an upper
per capita income level of $2,600 and a gradient of 85 per cent, a country with a
per capita income of §1,000 would reoceive a reduction from its national income of
52 per cent, whereas a country with a per capita income of $200 would receive a
reduction of 78 per cent, with only 22 per cent of its national income being
accessable.

49. With regard to the issue of price-adjusted exchange rates (PARE), several
delegations, including India, the Nordic countries, Pakistan, Tunisia and Venezuela
had spoken in favour of iacorporating PARE into the methodology, or had raised
questions about data availability and remaining obstacles. In fact, the utilization
of PARE was hampered merely by some countries' well-known political difficulties in
accepting its application.

50. Debt relief had seemed to be the most controversial issue. Many delegations
had supported the Committee's prcpo.al but a number of others had had strong

/ooo



A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 12

(Mc. Ald)

reservations about it, which seemed to concern the effect of the proposal more than
the methodology itself, The Committee's recommendation had been an attempt to
place the debt relief component of the methodology on a sounder conceptual
foundation than had been the case with the methods employed for the preceding two
scale. For the refinement of this process, it had been hoped that for the next
scale, country-specific loan stock data and repayment schedules would have been
available from a study undertaken by a joint working group of IMF, the World Bank,
OECD and the Bank for International Settlements. However, that study had had to be
abandoned, and the Group was currently studying balance-of-payment data, which
should make it possible to give more reliable external debt information for all
countries. The results of the new study were expected in 1993,

51. At the same time, the Committee on Contributions had begun to explore
alternative income concepts. The advantage of the concept of debt-adjusted income
was that it reflected the actual financial burden of a country's repaymeant of
external debt, rather than assuming that all countries followed similar repayment
schedules. Moreover, it avoided any double accounting, and its data requirements
dovetailed with the information that would be generated by the aforementioned study.

52. The disadvantage of the new concept of debt-adjusted income was that it could
} - considered an income concept only through such complex rationales as those
outlined in paragraph 30 of the Committee's report. Some delegations had requested
a comparison of debt-adjusted income and national income adjusted for debt using
the method applied in the curreat scale. According to the Statistical Office, such
a comparison was not possible, as the data base did not contain debt stock data
beyond 1986.

53. A number of delegations had commented on the interaction of various factors of
the scale methodology. Conference room papers (CRP.1 A and CRP.1 B) contained
information similar to what had been provided on the subject in the previous report
(A744/11). The only difference was the updated data base, the use of debt-adjusted
income and the increase in the upper per capita income level for the low per capita
income formula. It should be remembered that the scale of assessments reflected
the capacity to pay of Member States, albeit imperfectly. Changes from scale to
scale reflected relative changes in the economic situation of Member States. The
relativity of those changes was apparently at the heart of the growing discontent
of many developing countries, which saw assessment rates rise for some of them and
fall for developed countries. Positive development had taken place ir some
countries, particularly in what might be called the middle-income countries. The
countries that had had the greatest difficulties in accepting the last few scales
as fair were to be found among their numbers. The relative improvements in their
economic situations and the zero sum character of the scale were responsible for
that perceived unfairness.

54. Lastly, with respect to the remarks of the representatives of Algeria, the
Libyan Arab Jamahiriya, Oman and Morocco concerning the need to consider
incorporating other factors in the scale methodology, the Committee on
Contributions had not ignored pararaph 3 of resolution 43/223 B and

/.oo




A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 13

(Mr._ AlL)

paragraph 3 (b) (i) of resolution 44/197 A. However, work in that area was very
complex and coantroversial, in addition to being fraught with problems of data
availability and quality. The Commi.tee on Coatributions would continue its work
on alternative income concepts if so directed.

55. Mr, GUPTA (India) said that, despite the detailed explanations given by the
Chairman of the Committee on Contributions, he still did not really understand how
exempting Member States with very low per capita incomes from the absorption of
additional points as a result of the application of the scheme of limits would
duplicate the effect of the low per capita allowance formula, as stated in
paragraph 21 of the Committee's report. He hoped that the Committee would clarify
that point during its next session.

56. Mr. LOPEZ (Venezuela) sald that he would like the Secretariat to provide him
with a copy of the tables the Committee had used in examining the concept of
“available income". With respect to debt adjustment, he thought that it was very
important for the Statistical Office to provide delegations with a statement
showing the consequences of applying the method used to establish the 1989-1991
scale to the next scale, since it had been unable to furnish the comparative
statement initially requested. He noted that the repayment of debt referred to in
paragraph 30 of the Committee's report involved only public debt. His delegation
wished to repeat its request for a document that succinctly explained the methods
of price-adjusted rates of exchange (PARE), as well as for a table that would make
it possible to compare the scale produced by applying the rates of exchange
published by the International Monetary Fund with the scale produced by applying
the price-~-adjusted rates of exchange. Those documenis would be all the more useful
since the Nordic countries had put forward a proposal based on the PARE method.

57. Mr. DUHALT (Mexico) said that he would like to know the source of the
Committee's information on the growth rate cf the world economy, the growth rate of
average per capita income, and the rates of change for dollar and world prices. In
paragraph 27 of its 1989 report, the Committev had recammended raising the upper
per capita income limit to $2,600 since average puir capita income had increased by
18.3 per cent in the three-year period from 1983 to 1986. 8ix years would have
gone by from 1986 to 1992, when the new scalu would take effect. Perhaps some
thought might be given to what the upper limit should be in 1992,

58. Ms. BERENGUER (Brazil) said that the concept of debt-adjusted income had
undergone considerable evolution. For her delegation, the purpose of adjustment
was to reflect the situation of very heavily indebted countries. Since the
Secretariat had been unable to produce a table comparing the impact of the method
applied to date and the proposed new method, delegations should at least have a
document indicating the impact of applying the old formula to the next scale, which
would give them an idea of the general trend. According to the data in the
previous report (A/44/11) and in the conference room papers (CRP.1 A and CRP.1 B),
the redistribution of points for debt adjustment was less favourable to developing
countries with the new formula. In other words, the objectives set by the General




A/C.5/45/8R.15
English
Page 14

(Ms. Bereuguer, Brazil)

Assembly were not met. Perhaps it would be wiser to keep the 0ld formula, as the
Chairman of the Committee nad said was poussible. With respect to the scheme of
limits, she noted that it accentuated the largest distortioas,

59. Mr, MARRON (Spain) said t@ * the figures on uational per capita income in
annex III to document A/44/11 provided a useful supplemeat to the data in docrmeats
CRP.1 A and CRP.1 B. Those figures were current as of 1988,

60. Mr, ALI (Chair.ien of the Committeo on Contiibutions) assured the
representative of India that his point would be very carefully eramined by the
vcommittee at its next session. He hoped that the Statistical Office would be able
to provide the information requested by the representatives of Venesuela, Mexico,
Erazil and Spain.

AGENDA ITEM 118: PROGRAMME BUDGET FOR THE BIENNIUM 19%0-1991 (continued)

aezxisnn_in_shﬂ_lsﬂﬁ_laﬂl_nnn_lQﬁ5_1239 hunnninmn (continued) (A/45/7/Ad4.1)
A/C.5/45/1)

61, Mr, MICHALSKI (United States of America) said that, as a result of its
consultations on that item, his delegation proposed to make slight changes in the
draft decision that it had submitted tn the members of the Committee in order to
reflect their views. 7The progress already made would be highlighted in
paragraphs ¢ and 3, and the Secretary-General would be invited to submit the

various requested reports at the forty-seventh session of the General Assembly
instead of the forty--sixth,

The meeting rose at 1,05 p.m.




